
 

 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 9, 2016 

 

Page 1 of 2  
 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

November 9, 2016 
Closed Session 6:30 PM 
Regular Session 7:00 PM 

 

 
1) CONVENE CLOSED SESSION_______________________________________________________________ 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 
1B. Roll Call 
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
1D. Closed Session Agenda 
 Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation: Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
 Government  Code Section 54956.9(b), 1 case 
1E.  Report from Closed Session 
2) OPEN SESSION__________________________________________________________________________  
2A. Call Open Session to Order  
2B. Pledge of Allegiance 
2C. Roll Call 
2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
3) PRESENTATION_________________________________________________________________________ 
3A.  Proclamation Honoring Ty Conners for Community Service Award 
4) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 
discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item 
pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 
4A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of October 26 2016 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2016. 
4B. Quarterly Investment Report – September 30, 2016 
 Recommendation:  Accept and File. 
4C. Sales and Use Taxes Report – Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
 Recommendation:  Information only. 
4D. Approve $500 Seed Money to sponsor Winterfest, 2016 
 Recommendation:  Approve request from organizers 
4E. Cancel Second Meetings in November and December  
 Recommendation:  Approve cancellation of November 23, 2016 meeting and December 28, 2016 
 meeting. 
5) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 
committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 
Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 
meeting agenda. 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 
5B. City Operations Update – City staff 
5C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 



 

 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 9, 2016 

 

Page 2 of 2  
 

6) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject jurisdiction of 
the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes 
in length. The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 

7) PUBLIC HEARINGS________________________________________________________________ 
Public hearings that are continued will be announced. The continued public hearing will be listed on a subsequent Council Meeting Agenda and posting of 
that agenda will serve as notice. 

The City Council encourages the participation of the public. To ensure the expression of all points of view, and to maintain the efficient conduct of the City’s 
business, members of the public who wish to address the Council shall do so in an orderly manner. The audience is asked to refrain from positive or negative 
actions such as yelling, clapping or jeering that may intimidate other members of the public from speaking.  Members of the public wishing to speak may 
request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand, and stepping to the podium when requested to do so. 

7A. Mitigation Impact Fees  
STAFF PRESENTATION: John Schempf, City Manager  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct public hearing, review annual report, consider public and staff 
comments, accept report and adopt Resolution № 45-2016:  Accepting And Approving the Annual AB 
1600 Mitigation Fee Report And Making Findings Pursuant To Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 And 
The Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §66000 Et Seq) 

8) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
8A. Permanent Dam in Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 (EQ Basin) – Design Process                  
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  Travis Berry, Technical Services Manager  
 RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss and direct staff as appropriate 
8B. Adopt a Road 
 PRESENTATION:  Wes Heathcock, Community Services Director  
 RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 46-2016 approving the Adopt-a-Road Program and authorizing 
 the City Manager to administer the Adopt-a-Road Program.  
8C. Employee Health Insurance Coverage with CalPERS 
 PRESENTATION: John Schempf, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDATION:   
 1)  Adopt Resolution 47-2016:  Electing to be subject to the Public Employees’  Medical and Hospital 
 Care Act at Unequal Amounts for Employees and Annuitants (the standard CalPERS  contract). 

 2)  Authorize the City Manager to contract with Burnham Benefits for Vision, Dental and Life Insurances 
 for Represented and Non Represented Employees 

 3)  Approve offering a health benefits package to Non Represented Employees beginning January 1, 
 2017. 
8D. Emergency Preparedness:  Generators 
 STAFF PRESENTATION: John Schempf, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Verbal Report – Discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
9) ADJOURNMENT_______________________________________________________________________ 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted  
at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be limited to 
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk 
of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


 1 

 

 

 

  

REPORT TO  

COLFAX CITY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING OF 

July 24, 2013 

 

 

 

Agenda Item No. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Travis Berry, Technical Services Administrator 

Date: July 16th, 2013 

Subject: Consideration of the City’s acceptance of the Mink Creek Mobile Home Subdivision 
Sewer Mains 

 
 

  Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the City Council not accept the Mink Creek sewer mains or the offers of 
dedication on the recorded parcel map. If the Council wants to further consider accepting the 
Mink Creek sewer mains and offers of dedication, staff recommends that the Mink Creek HOA 
do the following at its expense before further Council consideration:  

I. Create and submit to the City as-built drawings for the entire sewer system stamped and 
signed by a currently licensed State of California Professional Engineer. 

II. Create and submit to the City as-built drawings for the entire undergrounded propane 
system. 

III. Conduct geotechnical studies on a number of excavations (potholing) as required by the 
City Engineer of the sewer mains in different locations of the subdivision to analyze 
whether or not proper fill material exists and whether or not proper compaction was 
performed and provide the results to the City. 

IV. Conduct a geotechnical study to ascertain whether other sinkholes are likely to occur in the 
subdivision and provide the results to the City. 

V. Inspect all sewer mains in the development and the sewer segments between the 
upstream and downstream manholes crossing the Mink Creek boundary using closed circuit 
television video equipment (CCTV) and provide the results to the City. 

VI. Repair all manhole lids to their original condition. 
VII. Provide survey accurate data about the rim, base and invert elevations and horizontal 

location of all manholes and link that data with Eco Logic’s 2009 survey 
If the Council wants to conclude its involvement with the Mink Creek sewer system, it can  
terminate the offers of dedication by vacating them as allowed by law. 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Plans for a 102-lot mobile home park known as Mirador Mobile Estates were approved by the City on 
September 21st, 1989. In October 1992, the City of Colfax Planning Commission approved a parcel map for 
two construction phases. In 1997, the Planning Commission approved a conversion of the mobile home 

Agenda Item No. 

ITEM 1A
1 of 115



 2 

park to a mobile home subdivision known as Mink Creek Mobile Home Subdivision containing 99 lots. Phase 
I consisted of 54 units and Phase II consisted of 45 units. Plans for Phase II were approved by the Planning 
Commission on June 15th, 2000. The developer, Mink Creek Development Company (MCDC) was a California 
limited partnership composed of three general partners including David Flickinger of Flickinger Investments, 
Incorporated, who primarily represented MCDC, Leland Van Hickman of Long Beach, CA and George E. Garr 
of Lakewood, CA. 
 
On April 21, 1994, the developer submitted his offer to dedicate various public and sewer easements and 
appurtenances to the City. The offer of dedication is contained in the owner’s statement and certificate on 
the recorded parcel map which is a customary method for offering easements and facilities to the public. 
Offers of dedication can be accepted by the City at any time. 
 
The Planning Commission’s adopted Conditions of Approval required the developer, among other things, to 
widen South Auburn Street for a school bus stop, construct a school bus stop, retain mature oak trees 
within the development, construct appropriate drainage facilities for all lots, create and submit as-built 
drawing for utilities, and the install a sewer trunk line (sewer main) from Mink Creek to the Whitcomb 
Avenue Industrial Park.  
 
On April 26, 1994, the City Council adopted Resolution 18-94 whereby it authorized the City Clerk or Mayor 
to sign the development’s parcel map but expressly declined to accept the offers of dedication, reserving to 
itself the right to do so in the future.  On August 12, 1997, the City Council adopted Resolution 27-97 
approving the Mink Creek final map but again expressly declining to accept the offers of dedication. It 
appears from the City’s records that the City was willing to accept the offers of dedication once all 
conditions of approval were met and that the City never accepted the offers because the conditions of 
approval were not all fulfilled. 
 

Summary of Failure to Comply with Conditions of Approval 
 
Throughout construction, the developer repeatedly failed to commence or complete projects required by 
the project conditions of approval by the mutually agreed deadlines. As a result, the City required the 
developer to post $90,000 cash to an escrow account as a security to guarantee completion of the COA 
requirements. David Flickinger deposited $90,000 to an escrow account in the name of Flickinger 
Investments, Inc., on January 21st, 2003, which the City accepted as being adequate.  
 
In early May 2003, David Flickinger personally withdrew the $90,000 security, or what was left of it, without 
notice to the City or presumably his partners, and skipped town. The City was unaware that the money was 
gone for several months. The City threatened legal action against David Flickinger and MCDC. A response 
was received from Flickinger’s attorney indicating that the corporate entity, David Flickinger, Inc., was a 
partner of MCDC, not David Flickinger personally. Flickinger’s attorney also stated that Flickinger 
Investments, Inc., was insolvent and David Flickinger was not personally liable because he was protected by 
the shield of his corporation. 
 
Contacting the two other general partners fared no better. On June 24th, 2004, Leland Van Hickman stated 
in a letter to the City Manager that in the absence of David Flickinger the two remaining partners had to 
disburse in excess of $100,000 to complete the project and that the Mink Creek Development Company 
was formally dissolved in November 2003. The project was never entirely completed. 
 
Most conditions of approval were completed to the satisfaction of the City, however, several important 
conditions have still not been met including 1) Creation and submittal of as-built drawings depicting 
undergrounded electrical, propane, storm sewer, and sanitary sewer systems; and 2) appropriate drainage 
facilities from lots 71 and 77 to lots 52 and 54.  
 

ITEM 1A
2 of 115



 3 

It is unfortunate that as-built drawings of the infrastructure improvements in the Mink Creek Subdivision 
were never created and provided to the City. The City is not at fault for this, nor are the homeowners in 
Mink Creek. The fault lies with the developer.  
 

GKM Sewer Connection to Mink Creek Mobile Home Subdivision Sewer System 
 
The following will respond to a question raised Mink Creek HOA Representative Al Turner at the June 12th, 
2013 City Council Meeting regarding the GKM /Tully Wihr (GKM) connection to the Mink Creek sewer 
system.  
 
Plans for Phase II of the Mink Creek Subdivision were approved by the Planning Commission on June 15th, 
2000. This approval was adopted with updated conditions of approval, one of which specifically required 
the installation of a sewer truck (main) from the Mink Creek Subdivision to the Colfax Industrial Park on 
Whitcomb Avenue, which the developer agreed to complete. The developer never commenced or 
completed this condition of approval.  
 
At the time, GKM was located across the freeway from where it is today, next to Hills Flat Lumber. GKM 
was rapidly outgrowing their facility and this necessitated a new facility. Construction of the new GKM 
building was underway when Pete Brodeur, the developer of the GKM project, contacted the City to ask 
why the sewer connection to the Industrial Park had not been completed. The City explained that the Mink 
Creek developer was supposed have completed the sewer main extension to the Industrial Park as a 
condition of approval but had failed to comply with that condition. Mr. Brodeur explained that GKM 
promptly needed a new facility and GKM, the City’s largest employer, would be forced to leave town if the 
facility was not timely completed. Mr. Brodeur asked the City if he could make the necessary improvements 
to the sewer system in light of Mink Creek Development Company’s failure to do so. The City agreed and 
Mr. Brodeur constructed the sewer main connection for which he was reimbursed $5,300, from a $20,000 
security deposited that was posted by Mink Creek Development Company. 
 

Sinkhole 
 
In 2007, a sinkhole was discovered at the corner of Treasurton Street and Winder Road in the Mink Creek 
Subdivision. The Mink Creek HOA hired GEOCON Consultants, Inc., a geotechnical firm, to conduct a study 
of the sinkhole. The sinkhole was two feet by four feet wide at the surface, widening to six to eight feet in 
diameter below the surface, with a soil depth of seven feet. Exploratory boring of the sinkhole was 
conducted by GEOCON. Fill material consisting of very soft, lean clay with sand was found from seven feet 
down to 55 feet, the maximum depth of the boring tools. Construction materials were found in the sinkhole 
at a depth of approximately 51 feet. It was the opinion of GEOCON that the sinkhole was of mad-made 
origin, likely a mining feature such as an air shaft, and that soil was loosely filled into the shaft during 
preliminary grading of the site. GEOCON suggested that a licensed specialty mining contractor be consulted 
for mitigation construction of the site. They also suggested further investigation of the development area to 
help determine whether other sinkholes are likely to occur. The City does not have any further 
documentation of the mitigation of the sinkhole or whether any further investigation of the area was 
conducted. 
 

Mink Creek Development Company’s Debt to the City 
 
City Building Official Gabe Armstrong conducted research in 2007 in response to the Mink Creek HOA’s 
verbal and written questions about monies being held in City coffers after “completion” of Mink Creek 
Mobile Home Subdivision. It was his finding that the City has expended and subsidized approximately 
$6,747.66 over and above the initial $20,000 improvement security deposit. Financial documentation 
supporting his finding exists in the Mink Creek street file. 
 

ITEM 1A
3 of 115



 4 

Staff Recommendations 
 
The fundamental difficulty with accepting the Mink Creek sewers is that they are almost two decades old.  
The condition of the sewer mains is unknown as is the location and condition of several manholes that have 
been covered.  Staff is also concerned that the soil underlying the sewer mains may not have been 
adequately compacted and that it may be unstable. 
 
Sewer mains and similar facilities are typically accepted when they are relatively new and the City has had 
the opportunity to verify that they were properly constructed and installed. Once sewer mains are 
accepted, the City has the opportunity to regularly inspect and maintain them and know what the problems 
may be.  That is not the case with Mink Creek.  
 
If the Council accepts the sewer mains, the City becomes responsible for their repair, maintenance and 
eventual replacement.  Given the unknowns, staff cannot in good conscience recommend that the Council 
risk taxpayer funds without first knowing as much as it can about the system. 
 
The Council technically does not need to do anything in order to accept staff’s recommendation. Offers of 
dedication have no effect until they are accepted. By doing nothing, the offers remain unaccepted. 
 
If the Council wants to further consider accepting the Mink Creek sewer mains, staff recommends that the 
Mink Creek HOA submit, at its expense, enough information to allow a complete evaluation of the system 
so the Council can know precisely what it is accepting. Staff’s recommendations in this regard appear at the 
beginning of this staff report. 
 
The Council also has the right to terminate the offers of dedication so they can never be accepted.  The 
process for doing so is the same as for summarily vacating public streets.  Staff does not recommend this 
course of action so future Councils and staff can re-visit the issue if need be.  
 

FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Declining to accept the Mink Creek sewer mains has no financial implication for the City.  Vacating and 
terminating the offers of dedication will require a modest amount of staff, engineering and legal time and 
expense. 
 
Large potential financial liability exists if the City accepts dedication of the sewer mains without first 
verifying their condition because, once accepted, the maintenance, repair and replacement of the sewer 
mains becomes a City responsibility. This requires all City taxpayers to share the cost of maintenance, repair 
and replacement whether or not they live in the Mink Creek subdivision.  
 

ATTACHED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: 
 

1. 31 May 1989 Letter from City Engineer to City Planner 
2. 21 September 1989 Mirador Mobile Estates Conditions of Approval  
3. Mirador Mobile Estates Environmental Planning Application 
4. 21 April 1994 Letter from City Engineer to City Manager 
5. Copy of Owners Statement recorded on parcel map 
6. 26 April 1994 Resolution № 18-94 
7. 12 August 1997 Resolution № 27-97 
8. 12 September 2000 Agreement Between City of Colfax and Mink Creek Development Company 
9. 12 December 2000 Letter from City Engineer to David Flickinger 
10. 26 December 2001 Letter from City Manager to Leland Van Hickman and David Flickinger 
11. 11 December 2001 Memo from Planning Director to City Manager 
12. 14 June 2002 Letter from Leland Van Hickman to City Manager 

ITEM 1A
4 of 115



 5 

13. 2 July 2002 Letter from Leland Van Hickman to City Manager 
14. 4 December 2002 Letter from City Manager to David Flickinger 
15. 14 February 2003 Memo from City Manager to City Attorney 
16. 21 January 2003 $90,000 escrow documentation from Sierra Valley Title Co. 
17. Mink Creek Mobile Home Park Tentative Parcel Map Conditions of Approval 
18. 25 March 2003 Memo from City Manager to City Council 
19. 25 March 2003 Resolution № 9-2003 
20. 8 July 2003 City Council Meeting Minutes 
21. 8 July 2003 Memo from City Manager to City Council 
22. 18 July 2003 Letter from City Attorney to Leland Van Hickman and David Flickinger 
23. 28 July 2003 Letter from Mink Creek HOA Attorney to David Flickinger 
24. 1 August 2003 Letter from David Flickinger’s Attorney to City’s Attorney with attachments 
25. 13 August 2003 Letter from City Attorney to Leland Van Hickman, George Carr, and David Flickinger 
26. 14 October 2003 Letter from City Attorney to Leland Van Hickman, George Carr, and David Flickinger 
27. 24 June 2004 Letter from Leland Van Hickman to City Manager 
28. 1 July 2004 Email from City Manager to City Engineer and City Attorney 
29. 18 October 2004 Memo from City Manager to City Engineer 
30. 31 December 2004 Letter from City Manager to Mink Creek residents Kenneth & Andrea Slusher 
31. 3 January 2005 Letter from City Manager to Mink Creek residents John Mayo and Ms. McGehee 
32. 4 January 2005 Letter from City Manager to Leland Van Hickman 
33. 21 July 2005 Letter from City Manager to President of Mink Creek HOA Brian West 

34. 28 August 2007 Staff Report from Building Official to City Manager 
  

ITEM 1A
5 of 115



ITEM 1A
6 of 115



ITEM 1A
7 of 115



ITEM 1A
8 of 115



ITEM 1A
9 of 115



ITEM 1A
10 of 115



ITEM 1A
11 of 115



ITEM 1A
12 of 115



ITEM 1A
13 of 115



ITEM 1A
14 of 115



ITEM 1A
15 of 115



ITEM 1A
16 of 115



ITEM 1A
17 of 115



ITEM 1A
18 of 115



ITEM 1A
19 of 115



ITEM 1A
20 of 115



ITEM 1A
21 of 115



ITEM 1A
22 of 115



ITEM 1A
23 of 115



ITEM 1A
24 of 115



ITEM 1A
25 of 115



ITEM 1A
26 of 115



ITEM 1A
27 of 115



ITEM 1A
28 of 115



ITEM 1A
29 of 115



ITEM 1A
30 of 115



ITEM 1A
31 of 115



ITEM 1A
32 of 115



ITEM 1A
33 of 115



ITEM 1A
34 of 115



ITEM 1A
35 of 115



ITEM 1A
36 of 115



ITEM 1A
37 of 115



ITEM 1A
38 of 115



ITEM 1A
39 of 115



ITEM 1A
40 of 115



ITEM 1A
41 of 115



ITEM 1A
42 of 115



ITEM 1A
43 of 115



ITEM 1A
44 of 115



ITEM 1A
45 of 115



ITEM 1A
46 of 115



ITEM 1A
47 of 115



ITEM 1A
48 of 115



ITEM 1A
49 of 115



ITEM 1A
50 of 115



ITEM 1A
51 of 115



ITEM 1A
52 of 115



ITEM 1A
53 of 115



ITEM 1A
54 of 115



ITEM 1A
55 of 115



ITEM 1A
56 of 115



ITEM 1A
57 of 115



ITEM 1A
58 of 115



ITEM 1A
59 of 115



ITEM 1A
60 of 115



ITEM 1A
61 of 115



ITEM 1A
62 of 115



ITEM 1A
63 of 115



ITEM 1A
64 of 115



ITEM 1A
65 of 115



ITEM 1A
66 of 115



ITEM 1A
67 of 115



ITEM 1A
68 of 115



ITEM 1A
69 of 115



ITEM 1A
70 of 115



ITEM 1A
71 of 115



ITEM 1A
72 of 115



ITEM 1A
73 of 115



ITEM 1A
74 of 115



ITEM 1A
75 of 115



ITEM 1A
76 of 115



ITEM 1A
77 of 115



ITEM 1A
78 of 115



ITEM 1A
79 of 115



ITEM 1A
80 of 115



ITEM 1A
81 of 115



ITEM 1A
82 of 115



ITEM 1A
83 of 115



ITEM 1A
84 of 115



ITEM 1A
85 of 115



ITEM 1A
86 of 115



ITEM 1A
87 of 115



ITEM 1A
88 of 115



ITEM 1A
89 of 115



ITEM 1A
90 of 115



I 
l i 
I 

06/2?/2007 15:40 FAX 9168529118 Geocon Consultants 

GEOCON 
CON9ULTAN'I'8, INC . 

GEOTECHNICAL • ENVIRONMENTAL • MATERIALS 

Project No. S9261-06-0l 
June,2007 

DRAFT VIA fACSIMILE 

Ms. Ashley Faoro 
Mink Creek of Colfax 
c/o Frei Real Estate Services 
8340 Auburn Boulevard, Suite 100 
Citrus Heights, California 95610 

Subject: SINKHOLE EVALUATION 
TREASURTON STREET AT WINDER ROAD 
COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 
SUB SURF ACE EXPLORATION 

Dear Ms. Faoro: 

~001/003 

At your request, we performed a site visit on , ....... Y.__,, visit we met with members of 
the local Homeowner's Association (HOA). An :trirltm"~nt Sl.okl:lcde has developed near the comer of 
Treasurton Street and Photo No. the residential development. At this time, 
the sinkhole is not the HOA is concerned that stability of 
adjacent poses a significant safety hazard. 

of Treasurton Street and Winder Road, at the edge of 
adjacent landscaped area. Currently, the opening at the 

wide by four feet long (see Photo No. 2). The near-vertical 
to approximately 6 to 8 feet in diameter. A sprinkler h~ad 

t~llb~~nim~. Soil within the sinkhole was approximately 7 feet below the 

~'rfr .. nn.~il an exploratory boring in the sinkhole using a truck-mounted drill rig 
hollow-stem augers. The boring was advanced to a depth of approximately 55 

feet We :flll from 7 feet below the ground surface to our maximum depth of exploration 
of 55 feet. Drilling was discontinued at 55 feet since further drilling was beyond our scope of services. 
Fill material generally consists of very soft, lean clay with sand. Man-made debris consisting of wire, 
utility cable, and paper was encountered at approximately 5 J feet. Drilling resistance was monitored 
during drilling. Fill material provided little resistance to drilling. Drilling resist:Bnce increased 
significantly between approximately 51 and 52 feet; however, drilling resistance decreased 
significantly thereafter. Total depth of the sinkhole is unknown. 

3160 Gold Volley Drive, Suite 800 • Roncho Cofdovo, Collforflla 957 42 • Telephone [916) 852-911 9 • fax (916) 6.52·91 32 

ITEM 1A
91 of 115



06/26/2007 15 : 40 FAX 9168529118 Geocon Consultants 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

ln our opinion, appropria.te mitigation measures would include: 

• 
• 

(3) 

Cast-in-place concrete slab, capped with soil, or 

Polyurethane foam plug, capped with soil 

Attachments: Photos No. 1 & 2 

l,rujet:t No. S926 J ·06·01 . 2. 

David W. Bieber, CEG, CHG, PGP 
Senior Geologist 

~ 002/003 

June, 2007 

ITEM 1A
92 of 115



06/26/2007 15 : 41 FAX 9168529118 Geocon Consultants ~ 003/003 

Photo No. 1 View of Mineshaft Location at Comer of Treast.irion Street and Winder Road 
Looking Northwest 

{ 

Photo No. 2 View of Mineshaft Looking South. Approximate Dimension of Shaft Below Ground 
Surface Ranges From 6 to 8 Feet in Diameter 

GEOCON 
C:DN8ULTA.NTII, UfC, 
'I GO GOLD VALLEY D ~. - $UITE8QQ · AANCHO COA OOVA, CA, Q~ 742 
PHONE 111152- 0'11 $- F ,0,~ Ql G Qe2 ·1132 

PHOTOS NO. 1 & 2 

Sinkhole Evaluation e Treasurton Street at Winder Road 
Colfax, California 

1---------,-----f 
GEOCON Project No. 89261·06-01 June 2007 

ITEM 1A
93 of 115



ITEM 1A
94 of 115



ITEM 1A
95 of 115



ITEM 1A
96 of 115



ITEM 1A
97 of 115



ITEM 1A
98 of 115



ITEM 1A
99 of 115



ITEM 1A
100 of 115



ITEM 1A
101 of 115



ITEM 1A
102 of 115



ITEM 1A
103 of 115



ITEM 1A
104 of 115



ITEM 1A
105 of 115



ITEM 1A
106 of 115



ITEM 1A
107 of 115



ITEM 1A
108 of 115



ITEM 1A
109 of 115



ITEM 1A
110 of 115



ITEM 1A
111 of 115



ITEM 1A
112 of 115



ITEM 1A
113 of 115



ITEM 1A
114 of 115



ITEM 1A
115 of 115



City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes October 26, 2016 
 

  

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, October 26, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 OPEN REGULAR MEETING 

1A. Call to Order 
Mayor Parnham called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 

1B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Principal Paul Lundberg led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1C. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, the City 
Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

2 PRESENTATIONS 

2A. Report from Winterfest Event Organizers 
Pastor Gary Howard, representing the Winterfest Organizing Committee, gave a 
presentation regarding the Winterfest event which will be held on December 10, 2016.  
He requested the City allow the tree lighting ceremony on the “traditional” tree in Arbor 
Park, contact the owner of the old hotel and have it lit and to sponsor the event with $500 
seed money.  Mayor Parnham stated staff will look into honoring all of Pastor Howard’s 
requests. 
Pastor Howard announced the November 4, 2016 Spaghetti Feed which will be held at the 
Sierra Vista Community Center (SVCC) at 6:00.  He stated the dinner fee is by donation. 
 

2B. Presentation Regarding Measure L 
Colfax High School Principal Paul Lundberg gave a comprehensive report about the 
successes of the high school.  He outlined the facility needs which would be met if 
Proposition L passes.  He promised the district will not waste the funds derived from the 
bonds if Measure L passes. 

 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
3A. Minutes City Council Meeting of September 28, 2016 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 28, 2016. 
3B. Cash Summary Report – September 28 2016 

Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
 

Items 3B was pulled for discussion. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey and seconded by Councilmember Hesch Council 
approved Item 3A. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

ITEM 4A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes October 26, 2016 
 

Item 3B Cash Summary Report – September 2016 
Councilmember Stockwin asked and received clarification for some of the information 
provided in the Cash Summary Report. 
On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, Council 
approved the Cash Summary Report for September 2016. 
 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Hesch 
 Councilmember Hesch reported staff is moving forward with an adopt-a-road 

program. 
 He requested staff look into low interest loans to capitalize on Measure M funds if 

Measure M passes.  A loan could be used to schedule large projects within 5 years 
instead of spreading out a series of small projects of the 30 year life of the tax.   

 He requested a staff update on the tracking program purchased for public works 
about a year ago. 

 Councilmember Hesch’ activities on behalf of the City included attending “Meet the 
Candidates” nights and representing the City on the PCTPA Board  

Councilmember Stockwin 
 Councilmember Stockwin’s activities as councilmember included attending a 

Nevada Irrigation District meeting about the proposed Dam. 
 He provided the phone number National Guard Members could use to contact 

Congressman La Malfa regarding recent rulings – 530-534-7100. 
Councilmember Douglass 

 Councilmember Douglass attended the Chamber Mixer, the craft fair at Sierra Vista 
Community Center, Measure L voter information meetings, Breakfast with Senator 
Gaines, Meet the Candidate meetings (as a candidate) and represented the City on 
the SACOG Board. 

 He announced the Placer County Economic Development breakfast will be held in 
Roseville on October 27, 2016 at 10:30AM.  Everyone interested is invited. 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 
 Mayor Pro Tem Harvey asked City Manager Schempf to give a report to Council 

regarding progress on the list of items which each Councilmember provided as 
priorities. 

Mayor Parnham 
 Mayor Parnham requested staff look into lighting the traditional tree in Arbor Park 

for the holiday season and asked staff to encourage reinstating the volunteer 
“clean-up” day. 

 He agrees with Councilman Hesch regarding loans to accelerate roads projects in 
the event that Measure M passes.  
 

4B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Schempf 

 City Manager Schempf reported the Annual League of California Cities Conference 
was informative and worthwhile. 

 He mentioned staff is currently researching options for Employee Health Insurance 
to determine a new provider by January 1, 2016 as per the Union MOU. 

ITEM 4A
2 of 5



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes October 26, 2016 
 

 Staff is gathering resources to begin a comprehensive Sewer Services Study to find 
ways to ensure the billing is equitable and efficient, and perhaps lower Sewer fees. 

 The Planner is working with the developer of a new housing project with plans for 
a hearing in December.  She is also reviewing the sign ordinance and will ask for 
Chamber of Commerce input before presenting proposed changes to Council. 

 The Community Services Department will begin working with Caltrans to approve 
the roundabout at South Auburn and the Highway. 

 The Electric Vehicle has been purchased and is in use at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 

 

4C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Sergeant Conners, Placer County Sheriff’s Office Colfax Substation Commander 

 Sergeant Conners announced the Dogs and Chats event is cancelled due to the 
predicted rainfall on Saturday 

 He gave a report of recent activities and acknowledged the efforts of Colfax 
officers. 

 He reminded everyone that “See Something, Say Something” works.  
Frank Klein, President of the Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  

 Mr. Klein thanked City staff and Council for hosting the Chamber Mixer at the 
landfill. 

 He requested everyone support the fundraisers for the fireworks and asked for 
volunteers to serve on the Chamber Board. 

Ty LaBelle, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 
 Chief LaBelle stated two more volunteers have been approved for the Fire 

Department. 
 The burn ban is lifted for the season.  Permits are still required. 
 CalFire is down-staffing for the season. 

 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Katherine Gifford, 214 Treasurton 

 Spoke against Measure H, the City of Colfax Medical Marijuana question. 
Stacie Younggren, area resident 

 Spoke in favor of Measure H.  
Dirk Gifford, 214 Treasurton 

 Spoke against Measure H.  
Foxey McCleary, 124 Saunders Lane 

 Suggested staff speak with the Colfax Garden Club about the proposed Adopt–a–
Road idea. 

 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

6A. Proposal from Mink Creek HOA 
PRESENTATION:  Al Turner, Mink Creek HOA President 
RECOMMENDATION:  Accept proposal from Mink Creek HOA for discussion in Closed 
Session at the November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting. 
 

Mr. Turner stated the errors and omissions of the developer have been a problem for 16 
years.  The Association representing the homeowners proposes the City take ownership 
of the sewer and storm drain system and make a payment to defray the costs of repairing 

ITEM 4A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes October 26, 2016 
 

the system. In exchange the HOA will promise not to sue the City for errors and omissions.  
He thanked Council for taking the proposal. 
 

Mayor Parnham stated the City Attorney recommended Council have no discussion of this 
proposal in public, and defer the topic to closed session at the next meeting.  
Councilmember Douglass asked if there is a statute of limitations for the HOA to bring 
judgement against the developer. 
City Attorney Cabral stated there is a statute of limitations and it would be difficult to 
bring suit against the developer who has filed bankruptcy and relocated to another state. 
Councilmember Stockwin asked how much Mink Creek proposed the City pay towards the 
repairs needed. 
 

6B. Volunteer Fire Department Emergency Response Vehicle Replacement 
PRESENTATION:  Ty LaBelle, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 44-2016 authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into a lease/purchase agreement with Burton-Rosenbauer Fire Equipment for an 
emergency response vehicle. 
 

Chief Labelle stated the proposed vehicle would replace the current vehicle which is 26 
years old.  The Department proposes purchasing the vehicle through a lease/purchase 
agreement using the revenues the Fire Department accrues when it rents equipment to 
other Fire Response entities.  The old truck will be donated to another fire department. 
 

Council discussed the purchase of the vehicle.  There was no public comment. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the Council 
unanimously approved Resolution 44-2016. 
AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

6C. Sewer Inspection Camera and Locator System 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the City Manager to enter into a purchase agreement 
with Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. for a sewer inspection camera and locator system. 
 

City Manager Schempf stated the City is required to inspect the sewer system regularly.  
Without the proper equipment, the City must hire outside vendors at considerable 
expense to perform the inspection.  Staff is recommending purchase of a good camera 
system. 
 

Council discussed the purchase and suggested staff look into using the camera to do 
sewer lateral inspections for the residents at a lower cost than they are currently paying 
for the City inspection permit plus the contractor fees.  There was no public comment. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey and a second by Councilmember Stockwin, 
Council unanimously approved the purchase of the Sewer Inspection Camera and Locator 
System. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 4A
4 of 5



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes October 26, 2016 
 

6D. Centennial Dam Economic Impacts on the City of Colfax 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 

City Manager Schempf recommended Council consider the economic impacts of the 
proposed dam.  Because the proposed reservoir would not be within our jurisdiction, this 
is really the only aspect upon which we can have influence.  Mr. Schempf met with the 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) to begin the process of expanding the City’s 
Sphere of Influence.  He will also meet next week with the Executive Director of the 
Nevada Irrigation District (NID) to discuss the NID timeline for the project.   
 

Council agreed to allow staff to explore the possibility of expanding the Sphere of 
Influence and wants to be informed as the process moves forward. 
There was no public comment. 
 

6E. Old Colfax Hotel Update 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 

City Manager Schempf stated staff, including the City Attorney, recently met with the 
owner of the Old Colfax Hotel.  Staff made it clear to the owner of the building that he 
needs to make progress on the abatement of the public nuisance or the City will need to 
take legal action against him.  The owner agreed to allow the City engineer to check the 
building for structural integrity. He will complete the current abatement permit for 
bringing the outside of the building up to code within 90 days.  Once the abatement 
permit is complete the owner will submit his plans for operation of the building to the 
Planning Department for review. 
 

Council asserted the need to keep the pressure up on the owner so this problem can be 
fixed.  There was no public comment. 
 

7 ADJOURNMENT 

Before adjourning the meeting, Mayor Parnham confirmed with the other members of 
Council to direct staff to find a way to light the “traditional” tree in Arbor Park for the 
holiday season. 
 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Parnham adjourned the meeting 
at 8:56PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 9nd day of November, 2016. 
 

 

ITEM 4A
5 of 5



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 9, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 2, 2016 
SUBJECT: Quarterly Investment Report – September 30, 2016 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File. 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Quarterly Investment Report for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2016. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly 
investment report be submitted to the City Council.  Such report shall include at least the following 
information: 

 Types of Investments; 

 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 

 Date of Maturity, if applicable; 

 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 

 Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of 
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 

 Rate of interest 

 Average weighted yield of all investments 

 A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and 

 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months’ financial 
obligations. 

 

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and 
$150,000 in the City’s US Bank Corporate checking account.  This account accumulates Earnings Credits 
based on the account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges.  City funds in excess of 
targeted operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
on a weekly basis.  The checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target 
balance by the Bank due to the timing of City checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 
 
 

ITEM 4B
1 of 5



2 

 

 
 
 

Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate 
checking and LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited.  Our investment policy dictates that the City 
should have liquid short term securities to meet six month’s financial obligations.  The budget for 2016-
2017 reflects nearly $4.5M in annual expenditures, therefore our target for liquid short term securities 
would be $2.25M.   
 

CONCLUSION:   
 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

 The investments held at September 30, 2016 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by 
Resolution 29-2014, 

 The composite yield of the City’s investment pool to be the rate of .57% for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2016, 

 There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period 
October 01, 2016 to March 31, 2017. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 09/30/16) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

ITEM 4B
2 of 5



City of Colfax
Analysis ofTreasury Investment Pool

Quarterly Analysis FY2O1G2017
Report Date: 11/02/16

Total Investment Pool

average

Investment % of Total Investment

Amount Investment Yield

$ 4,014,489 100% 0.57%

I QuarterEnded09/30/2016 I

Type of Investment

Investment Fund

Corporate Checking

Date of

Financial Institution Maturity

State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A $ 3,576,677 89% 0.60%

us Bank N/A $ 437,812 11% 0.19%

ITEM 4B
3 of 5



1 JES

JOHN CHIANG
TREASU RER

STATE OF CALIFORNIA L!J
1IOUDck

Apportionment Rate:
Earnings Ratio:

Fair Value Factor:
Daily:

Quarter to Date:
Average Life:

certificates of
Deposit/Bank

Notes
20.21%

Sep 2016
Aug 2016

Jul 2016

060%
.00001651908048883
1.000306032
0.65%
0.61%
165

0.634%
0.614%
0.588%

I Treasuries
46.06%

PMIA Performance Report LAIF Performance Report

Quarter Ending 09/30/16Average
Quarterto Maturity

Date Daily Yield* Date Yield fin days)
09/26/16 0.64 0.61 157
09/27/16 0.64 0.61 157
09/28/16 0.64 0.61 160
09/29/16 0.64 0.61 162
09/30/16 0.65 0.61 165
10/01/16 0.65 0.65 165
10/02/16 0.65 0.65 165
10/03/16 0.65 0.65 169
10/04/16 0.65 0.65 170
10/05/16 0.65 0.65 170
10/06/16 0.65 0.65 169
10/07/16 0.65 0.65 171
10/08/16 0.65 0.65 171
10/09/16 0.65 0.65 171
10/10/16 0.65 0.65 168
10/11/16 0.65 0.65 169
10/12/16 0.65 0.65 168
10/13/16 0.65 0.65 170
10/14/16 0.66 0.65 171
10/15/16 0.66 0.65 171
10/16/16 0.66 0.65 171
10/17/16 0.65 0.65 168
10/18/16 0.65 0.65 167
10/19/16 0.65 0.65 166
10/20/16 0.65 0.65 164
10/21/16 0.66 0.65 165
10/22/16 0.66 0.65 165
10/23/1 0.66 0.65 165
10/24/1 : 0.66 0.65 164
10/25/1.. 0.66 0.65 168
10/26/16 0.66 0.65 167

PMIA Average Monthly
Effective Yields

Pooled Money Investment Account
Portfolio Composition

09/30/16

$68.3 billion
Loans
1.17%

*Daily yield does not reflect capital gains or losses

commercial
Paper

10.74%

Time

Agencies Mortgages
14.09% 0.08%

Based on data available as of 10/26/2016

ITEM 4B
4 of 5



California State TreaAret

John Chiang
Home PMA Home Contazts

i;m ->> Eh1L >> PMA Average Monthly Effective Yields

POOLt:D MONEY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

PMIA Average Monthty Effective Yields

H()Te ::en Gcvrnn;ent Cotct

Time Deposits LAIF

Search

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Ju Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1977 5.770 5.660 5660 5650 5.760 5850 5.930 6050 6090 6.090 6610 6.730

1978 6.920 7.050 7140 7270 7386 7.569 7 652 7.821 7.871 8 110 8.286 8.769

1979 8.777 8.904 8820 9.082 9046 9.224 9202 9528 9,259 9,814 10.223 10.218

1980 10.980 11.251 11.490 11 480 12017 11798 10206 9870 9.945 10.056 10.426 10.961

1981 10.987 11.686 11.130 11.475 12179 11,442 12.346 12.844 12.059 12.397 11.887 11.484

1982 11,683 12.044 11.835 11.773 12270 11.994 12235 11.909 11.151 11.111 10,704 10401

1983 10.251 9 887 9,688 9.868 9,527 9.600 9.879 10.076 10 202 10 182 10 164 10,227

1984 10.312 10280 10382 10.594 10.843 11.119 11.355 11.557 11.597 11.681 11.474 11024

1985 10.579 10.289 10.118 10.025 10.180 9.743 9.656 9.417 9.572 9482 9488 9371

1986 9 252 9.090 8.958 8.621 8,369 8.225 8.141 7.844 7 512 7 586 7 432 7.439

1987 7.365 7.157 7.205 7.044 7294 7.289 7.464 7562 7712 7.825 8.121 8.071

1988 8.078 8.050 7.945 7.940 7.815 7.929 8.089 8245 8.341 8.397 8467 8.563

1989 8.698 8.770 8870 8.992 9.227 9.204 9.056 8.833 8.801 8.771 8.685 8.645

1990 8.571 8.538 8.506 8.497 8.531 8.538 8.517 8 382 8.333 8 321 8 269 8.279

1991 8.164 8.0027.7757.6667.374t .169 7.098 7.072 6.859 6 719 6 591 6.318

1992 6.122 5.863 5680 5.692 5.379 5.323 5.235 4.958 4.760 4730 4.659 4.647

1993 4.678 4.649 4.624 4.605 4.427 4.554 4.438 4.472 4.430 4 380 4 365 4.384

1994 4.359 4176 4248 4.333 4.434 4.623 4.823 4.989 5.106 5243 5380 5.528

1995 5.612 5779 5.934 5.960 6.008 5.997 5.972 5.910 5.832 5784 5.805 5.748

1996 5.698 5.643 5.557 5.538 5 502 5.548 5.587 5 566 5 601 5 601 5 599 5.574

1997 5.583 5.575 5.580 5.612 5634 5.667 5.679 5.690 5707 5.705 5.715 5.744

1998 5.742 5.720 5.680 5.672 5673 5.671 5652 5652 5.639 5.557 5492 5.374

1999 5.265 5.210 5.136 5.119 5.086 5.095 5 178 5225 5.274 5.391 5.484 5.639

2000 5.760 5.824 5.851 6.014 6.190 6.349 6.443 6 505 6.502 6.517 6.538 6.535

2001 6.372 6.169 5 976 5.760 5.328 4.958 4.635 4.502 4.288 3.785 3.526 3.261

2002 3.068 2.967 2.861 2.845 2740 2.687 2.714 2.594 2.604 2.487 2.301 2.201

2003 2.103 1.945 1 904 1 858 1.769 1.697 1.653 1.632 1.635 1.596 1.572 1.545

2004 1.528 1.440 1 474 1.445 1.426 1.469 1.604 1.672 1.771 1 890 2.003 2.134

2005 2 264j 2.368 2 542 [ 2 724 2.856 2.967 3.083 3 179 3.324 3.458 3 636 3.808

2006 4.14214.305 4.563 4.700 4.849 4946 5.023 5098 5125 5.129

2007 5.15615.181 5214 15222 5.248 5.250 5.255 5253 5.231 5137 4962 4.801

2008 4620[4.’161 3072 2.894 2.787 2779 2774 2709 2.568 2.3.53

2009 2.046 r.869 1.222f.607 1.530 1.377 1.035 0925 ‘ 0.750 0.646 0.611 0.569

2010 0.55810.577 0.547J0.588 0.560 0.528 0.53‘‘1 0513 0.500 0.480 0.454 0.462

2011 0.538T0.512 0500]0.583 0.413 0.448 0381 0408 0.378 0385 0.401 0.382

2012 0.385 j 0.389 0 383T0.367 0 363 0 358 0.353 0 377 0.348 0 340 0 324 0 326

2013 0.300J0.286 0.285J64 0245 0.244 0.267 0.271 0.257 0.266 0263 0.264.

2014 0.2441 0.236 0 23’[ 0.233 0.228 0.228 0.244 0 260 0.246 0 261 0 261 0.267

2015 0.262 [‘0.266 0.278Jb.283 0.290 0.299 0.320 0.330 0.337 0.357 0 374 0.400

2016 9,0.467 050610525 0.552 0.575 0.588 0.614 0.634

F.mc I C.,, I PcIQkrQNotice P nvacy NtIcc I Accessibilfty,, I ..
pprty I I

Copyright © 2016 State of California

ITEM 4B
5 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 9, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Sales and Use Taxes Report – Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:  General Fund 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information only 

 

SUMMARY: 
The City has received the final accounting of Sales and Use Tax revenues for the fiscal year 2015-2016 (year 
ended June 30, 2016).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Total sales tax revenue for fiscal year 2015-2016 was $1,104,357, which was an increase of 15% over the 
previous year revenues and a 29% increase over the amended budget amount of $850,000 for the fiscal 
year. 
  
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 
A portion of the increase for the fiscal year may be the true up and final adjustments related to the end of 
the decade old triple flip sales tax program which ended December 31, 2015. In addition, sales tax revenues 
for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and June 30, 2016 both increased about 40% of the previous year. 
 
Our current year 2016-2017 budget was adopted in June 2016 and was conservatively based on fiscal year 
2015-2016 actual data at that time.  The budget is now $927,000 which is 16% less than the final 2015-2016 
actuals.    Staff will continue to closely monitor sales and use tax revenues and provide current year 
projections when available, and provide any budget amendment recommendations at the mid-year budget 
review in February 2017. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Graph – City of Colfax – Retail Sales Tax Revenues 
2. Chart – City of Colfax – Retail Sales Tax History 

ITEM 4C
1 of 3



C
ity

of
C

ol
fa

x
-

R
et

ai
l

S
al

es
an

d
U

se
T

ax
R

ev
en

ue
s

$3
50

,0
00

.

$1
00

,0
00

*
2
0
1
5
-2

0
1
6

$2
59

,2
16

.1
..

2
0

1
4

-2
0

1
5

$2
70

,4
05

im
2
0
1
3

20
14

$3
01

73
9

[
2

0
1

1
20

12

2
0
1
2
-
2
0
1
3

$2
17

,8
02

$2
16

,6
50

$1
97

,1
05

$1
55

,2
33

A
$3

00
,0

00

$2
50

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

.
—

a) a) >
‘

.0 x a) ‘I
,

$5
0,

00
0
4
—

Q
E

0
9

/3
0

—
I

20
16

-2
01

7
B

ud
ge

t
$2

31
,7

50

A

Q
E

1
2
/3

1

I
$2

31
,7

50

I

Q
E

0
3

/3
1

$2
31

,7
50

$2
31

,7
50

-
.
.
-

$2
82

,2
33

$2
72

,6
85

$2
90

,2
23

$2
65

,2
07

$2
02

,9
28

$2
28

,1
57

$1
82

,1
83

$1
90

10
4

$1
70

94
7

$1
48

67
2

$1
44

,5
54

$1
46

,4
66

$1
25

,6
90

U
,-

,,
3

0

ITEM 4C
2 of 3



City of Colfax

Sales and Use Tax Revenue History

1999-2000

2000-2001

2001-2002

2002-2003

2003-2004

2004-2005

2005-2006

2006-2007

2007-2008

2008-2009

2009-2010

2010-2011

2011-2012

2012-2013

2013-2014

2014-2015

2015-2016

2016-2017

Actuals

$ 478,169

$ 484,801

$ 592,392

$ 581,749

$ 601,276

$ 707,515

$ 749,583

$ 752,431

$ 648,989

$ 540,051

$ 538,549

$ 551,953

$ 571,943

$ 706,828

$ 928,729

$ 956,342

$ 1,104,357
* $ 927,000

Change

$ 6,632

$ 107,591

$ (10,643)

$ 19,527

$ 106,239

$ 42,068

$ 2,848

$ (103,442)

$ (108,938)

$ (1,502)

$ 13,404

$ 19,990

$ 134,885

$ 221,901

$ 27,613

$ 148,015

$ (177,357)

% Change

1%

22%

-2%

3%

18%

6%

0%

-14%

-17%

0%

2%

4%

24%

31%

3%

15%

-16%

*Adopted Budget - No current year data received to date

ITEM 4C
3 of 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 9, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: November 3, 2016 

SUBJECT: Winterfest Seed Money 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:  General Fund 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize donating $500 to Winterfest organizers to be used towards 
purchase of Fireworks for the December 10, 2016 event. 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The City Council of the City of Colfax traditionally donates $500 to serve as seed money for certain City 

wide events each year.  The City requires the organizer request the funding and to specify how the money 

will be spent.  The Winterfest Organizers have requested $500 to be used in the purchase of fireworks for 

the event which is scheduled for December 10, 2016. 

 

Staff recommends authorizing the donation of $500 for Winterfest fireworks. 

ITEM 4D
1 of 1



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE OCTOBER 12, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED By: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: August 31, 2016 

SUBJECT: Mitigation Impact Fees 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $ FROM FUND: 

 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION: Conduct public hearing, review annual report, consider public and staff 
comments, accept report and adopt Resolution № 45-2016:  Accepting And Approving the Annual AB 1600 
Mitigation Fee Report And Making Findings Pursuant To Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 And The 
Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §66000 Et Seq) 

SUMMARY: 
The State of California, through the enactment of Government Code Section 66000 et seq. (the “Mitigation Fee 
Act”),  conferred upon local government units authority to adopt fees imposed on a broad class of projects and 
fees imposed on specific projects for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities 
related to the development project.  The City of Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 established the local 
authority for imposing Mitigation Impact Fees as allowed by the Mitigation Fee Act.  
 

Colfax Municipal Code §3.56.130B requires the City to complete an annual AB1600 Mitigation report and 
Council to review the annual report at a noticed public hearing.  At the close of the hearing, the Council must 
determine whether the mitigation impact fee amounts continue to be reasonably related to the impact of 
development and whether the described public facilities are still needed.  The Council is authorized to revise the 
mitigation impact fees to include additional projects not previously foreseen as being needed. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
The City maintains separate fund accounts for each mitigation fee type. The City has established the following 
Mitigation Impact Fees: 
 

1. Roads – Fund 210 
2. Drainage – Fund 211 
3. Trails – Fund 212 
4. Parks and Recreation – Fund 213 
5. City Buildings – Fund 214 
6. City Vehicles – Fund 215 
7. Downtown Parking – Fund 217 
8. Fire Construction Fees – Fund 342 
9. Recreation Construction Fees – Fund 343 

ITEM 7A
1 of 6



2 

 

 
These funds earn and accumulate interest and all expenditures from these funds have been for the purpose for 
which the fees were collected.   A detailed financial analysis by fund and a schedule of mitigation fees are 
attached as part of this report. 
 
Mitigation Fees are accounted for using the accounting method known as FIFO (first in, first out), which means 
the first revenue received is assumed to be the first spent.  State law and the Colfax Municipal Code require the 
City to prepare an annual report for each fund established to account for Mitigation Impact Fees.  The report 
must include (1) A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund (Government Code 
§66006(b)(1)(A)) , (2)  the amount of the fee (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(B)),  (3) the beginning and ending 
balance of the account or fund (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(C)), (4) the amount of the fees collected and 
the interest earned (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(D)), (5)  an identification of each public improvement on 
which fees were expended and the amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total 
percentage of the cost of the public improvement that was funded with the fees (Government Code 
§66006(b)(1)(E)), (6) an identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public 
improvement will commence if the city determines that sufficient funds have been collected to complete 
financing on an incomplete public improvement (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(F)), (7) a description of each 
inter-fund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, including the public improvement on which the 
transferred or loaned fees will be expended, and, in the case of an inter-fund loan, the date on which the loan 
will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the account or fund will receive on the loan (Government Code 
§66006(b)(1)(G)) and (8) the amount of refunds made and allocations made if the cost of making a refund 
exceeds the amount to be refunded. 
 
Public Contact 
This report was available at City Hall counter by:  October 27, 2016 
Notice of Public Hearing was published: Colfax Record – October 27, 2016 
 
CONCLUSION:  
 
Staff recommends that Council reviews and accepts report. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Resolution 45-2015 
2. Annual AB1600 Report 
3. Mitigation Fee Schedule 
 
The 2006 Mitigation Fee Study and 2006 Mitigation Fee – Council minutes are available at City Hall. 

ITEM 7A
2 of 6



Resolution 45-2016 1  

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 45-2016 
 

ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE ANNUAL MITIGATION FEE REPORT AND 
MAKING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 3.56 

AND THE MITIGATION FEE ACT (GOVERNMENT CODE §66000ET SEQ) 

 
 WHEREAS, in 1987 the California Legislature adopted the Mitigation Fee Act as 
Government Code §§66000 et seq (the “Mitigation Fee Act”) whereby it authorized cities to 
impose fees in connection with the approval of development projects for the purpose of 
defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities related to the development project 
(“Mitigation Impact Fees”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2007 the City Council of the City of Colfax adopted Ordinance 488 
pursuant to the authority of the Mitigation Fee Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Colfax received Mitigation Impact Fees from various developers 
pursuant to Ordinance 488 and deposited those fees into separate funds as required by 
law; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mitigation Fee Act and Colfax Ordinance require the preparation of a 
report identifying the balance of Mitigation Impact Fees in the various funds established for 
their deposit, the facilities constructed and the facilities to be constructed (the “Mitigation 
Fee Report”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Director prepared the Mitigation Fee Report, a copy of 
which is attached to this Resolution; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 9, 2016, pursuant to notice duly published and posted, the 
Colfax City Council opened a public hearing for the purpose of (1) reviewing the Mitigation 
Fee Report and the Mitigation Impact Fees and determining whether the Mitigation Impact 
Fee amounts continue to be reasonably related to the impact of development, (2) 
determining whether the described facilities are still needed, (3) determining whether the 
Mitigation Impact Fees should be revised to include additional projects not previously 
foreseen as being needed and (4) making other findings required by law; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 9, 2016, the public hearing was closed after all public 
comments were received. 
 

 
 

ITEM 7A
3 of 6



Resolution 45-2016 2  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 
 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated 

into this Resolution by this reference. 
 
2.  Based upon all of the evidence in the record before it and the comments received 

from the public, the Colfax City Council hereby finds and determines: 
a. The purpose to which each Mitigation Impact Fee identified in the Mitigation 

Fee Report is adequately identified in Colfax Municipal Code §3.56.050 and 
the Major Projects and Mitigation Fee Study dated August 14, 2006, as 
amended. 

b. It has been adequately demonstrated that there continues to be a reasonable 
relationship between each Mitigation Impact Fee and the purpose for which 
it is charged. 

c. To the extent any improvements to be funded by Mitigation Impact Fees 
remain incomplete, the sources and amount of funding are identified in the 
Major Projects and Mitigation Fee Study dated August 14, 2006 as amended 
and include without limitation future development projects in Colfax. 

d. The approximate dates on which funding for all projects to be funded by 
Mitigation Impact Fees will be deposited into the appropriate Mitigation 
Impact Fee account or fund is presently unknown because development 
within the City is unpredictable but is estimated to be at approximately the 
same time as future development occurs. 

e. The amounts of the Mitigation Impact Fees continue to be reasonably related 
to the impact of development. 

f. The public facilities described in the Major Projects and Mitigation Fee Study 
dated August 14, 2006, as amended, and as provided in Colfax Municipal 
Code §3.56.050 are still needed. 

 
3. The Mitigation Fee Report is hereby approved 
 

 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 9th day of  
November 2016 by the following roll call vote of the Council: 
 

Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

 ___________________________________ 
      Tom Parnham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7A
4 of 6



Roads Drainage Trails Parks & Rec City Building City Vehicle

Downtown 

Parking

Recreation 

Construction

Fire 

Construction Total

210 211 212 213 214 215 217 342 343

Beginning Balance 07/01/15 62,919$          3,038$             42,555$          97,454$          941$                4,476$             26,525$          2,419$             2,419$             242,746$        

REVENUE

Fees Collected -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Interest Earnings 167                  8                       115                  264                  3                       12                     72                     7                       7                       653                  

Other Revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

 167                  8                       115                  264                  3                       12                     72                     7                       7                       653                  

EXPENDITURES

Project  Expenditures 10,359             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        10,359             

Refunds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers Out -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

10,359             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        10,359             

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (10,192)           8                       115                  264                  3                       12                     72                     7                       7                       (9,706)              

Ending Balance at 06/30/16 52,727$          3,046$             42,670$          97,718$          944$                4,488$             26,597$          2,426$             2,426$             233,040$        

Roads Drainage Trails Parks & Rec City Building City Vehicle

Downtown 

Parking

Recreation 

Construction

Fire 

Construction Total

210 211 212 213 214 215 217 342 343

Project:   Economic Revitalization 10,359$          10,359$          100%

Project   __________________________ -$                 0%

Project   __________________________

Project   __________________________

Total Expenditures by Project 10,359$          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 10,359$          

Percentage 

Funded with 

Mitigation Fees

Analysis of Change in Fund Balance

Expenditures by Project

City of Colfax

Annual Report on Mitigation Fees Per Government Code 66000

AB1600 Statement - Fiscal Year 2015-2016

ITEM 7A
5 of 6



TABLE II-3 Consolidated

MITIGATION FEE BY LANDUSE & TYPE

COLFAX MITIGATION FEE STUDY

July 01, 2016 update

Mitigation Fee 3.56 Single Multi Office Retail Industrial

Item Code/Ordinance Section Family Family Building Building Building

per unit per unit per 1000 sf per 1000 sf per 1000 sf Jim Fletter's comments

Roads 3.48??  3.56.030A 1,802$         1,301$                5,285$             6,342$             1,172$                        Paid on issuance of any building permit

Drainage Study 3.56.030B 74$              48$                     57$                  68$                  43$                             

Drainage systems on e-w culverts 3.56.030C 3,416$         2,216$                2,616$             3,139$             1,962$                        

Trails 3.56.030D 1,125$         787$                   35$                  31$                  12$                             

Park & Rec. 3.36.020??  3.56.030E 5,731$         4,011$                178$                160$                63$                             

City Buildings 3.56.030F 684$            494$                   2,007$             2,409$             445$                           

City Vehicles 3.56.030G 130$            94$                     380$                456$                84$                             

GP & Zoning -$                 -$                        -$                     -$                     -$                               

Downtown Parking 3.56030H 581$            420$                   1,705$             2,046$             378$                           

Mitigation Fee Study -$                 -$                        -$                     -$                     -$                               

per unit per unit Totals for a 10,000             sf building, example

Total 13,543$       9,372$                122,628$         146,522$         41,595$                      

Totals areas not using e-w culverts 10,126$       7,156$                96,465$           115,128$         21,974$                      

Mitigation Fee Single Multi Office Retail Industrial

Item Code/Ordinance Section Family Family Building Building Building

per unit per unit

Sewer Impact Fee  g) Ord 475, 6-3.203 & 4 Group 110 Group 120 Group 217 Group 221 Group 400 Fee adjusted annually by City Engineer 

Code 13.08.100 ENR  f) 8,260.00$    8,260.00$           8,260.00$        8,260.00$        16,520.00$                 based on ENR, San Francisco Bay Area CCI

+ each unit >1 + for each additional 1000sf Paid upon new connection

6,608.00$           1,652.00$        4,130.00$        

Landfill Equity, Buy-In Fee Code 3.32.030 47.00$         47.00$                47.00$             1st 2000 Flat fee that never changes

+ for each additional 2000sf or portion thereof Paid with each building permit

47.00$             47.00$             47.00$                        

Construction Tax applicable to building permits  (1/2 tax to parks, 1/2 tax to fire) "Residential Construction Tax"

      - Residential Code 3.24.040 A, B, C, D 1.00% of build. value Paid with construction of new mobile home

      - mobilehome 3.24.040 E 500.00$       per unit or residential unit

(includes modular & prefab.)

      - all other Code 3.24.040 F 1.00% of building valuation Disagree, no provision for office, retail, industrial, etc

(includes office, retail, indus.)

Whitcomb Ave. Code 3.44 See attached map, applicable parcels and fee Fair share fee established in Ordinance 466

    Fair Share applicable to certain parcels

Placer County Facilities Fee e) 12,000$       1,793.05$           0.46$         0.28$         0.23$                 

PCWA Water Connection Fee Fee collected directly by PCWA at time water meter is placed. Verified with PCWA 1/6/14 by Jim Fletter

City Building Permit Application and Permit Fee

Building valuation

City permit application fee

City building permit fee

Notes:

  d.  Varies by more specific type breakdown and EDU assigned per Ordinance 475 Article 4 and Appendix A.  

  e.  Amounts usually adjusted by County on October 1st each year.  See Fee schedule for additional land use breakdown.

  f.  Amounts are increased each year per code by ENR CC Index on July 1.

  g.  Sewer impact fee groups shown are example.  See Sewer Code and adjust each group # and amount per EDU schedule. 

ITEM 7A
6 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 9, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Travis A. Berry, Technical Services Manager 
DATE: November 2nd, 2016 

SUBJECT: Permanent Dam in WWTP Pond 1 (EQ Basin) – Design Process 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED 
AMOUNT:  Time and 
Materials (An estimate will 
be available after 11/7/16) 

FROM FUND:  560 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The wastewater treatment plant has a history of being unable to sustain continuous treatment due to varied 
influent flows.  These varied flow rates, accompanied by varying organic loading, cause upsets in the treatment 
process that prohibit continuous operation.  In 2014, the City conducted a pilot project in which a temporary 
water-filled dam was installed in Pond 1 to separate it into two separate ponds. One side is used as an 
equalization basin (EQ basin) and the other side is used only to store water to keep the dam in place.  The goal 
of the project was to create an EQ basin that stored no more than two days of influent water and then to pump 
a constant rate of water from it to the biological treatment facility, thereby eliminating varied flows and organic 
loading rates.  
 
The pilot project has proven successful in the operation of biological treatment with continuous, steady flow 
rates and organic loading rates with permit requirements well within parameters.  The water-filled dam is only a 
temporary solution to the issue. It is essentially a giant water balloon and will eventually fail as it has in the past.  
The dam has sprung leaks and has had to be replaced. It has also broken loose from its tie downs during 
significant rain events allowing algae laden water on the unused side to be combined with the raw influent 
water on the EQ side which disrupted treatment. 
 
Staff proposes working with the City’s in-house engineering firm to design a permanent dam within Pond 1.  The 
dam will have valves and plumbing to allow use of either side as an EQ basin while the other is cleaned.  The 
dam will be constructed primarily of shotcrete coated earth to keep costs as low as possible. 
 
 

ITEM 8A
1 of 1



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 9, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED By: Wes Heathcock, Community Services Director 

SUBJECT: Adopt-a-Road Program 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $400 
FROM FUNDS: 270 
(CalRecycle) 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 46-2016 approving the Adopt-a-Road Program and 
authorizing the City Manager to administer the Adopt-A-Road Program. 

 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
 
At the October 19, 2016 meeting, City Council directed staff to draft an Adopt-a-Road Program (Program) 
for approval.  Staff researched the existing trash abatement programs in the region and put together a 
draft proposal for Council’s consideration. 
 
The main parameters in the program include defining areas suited for the Program, trash removal 
frequency and duration requirements, and wavier of liability.  Based on the Community’s trash issue 
needs, staff is recommending initializing the Program to include the two streets parallel to the I-80 corridor 
– S. Canyon Way and S. Auburn Street.  The S. Canyon Way section would be between Siems Avenue and 
the S. Canyon Way Overcrossing, which is approximately 1.2 miles in length.  The S. Auburn Street section 
would be between Whitcomb Avenue and the S. Canyon Way Overcrossing, which is approximately 1.15 
miles in length.  The typical distance for the region’s trash abatement programs is 1-2 miles per assigned 
volunteer section; therefore, the proposed areas are within acceptable limitations.  
 
The second item of value in the Program is the frequency of trash collection within the volunteer 
designated areas.  After viewing other Programs, staff learned the average number of collection cycles per 
calendar year is 2 times per calendar year.  The draft Program requires a minimum of 2 roadside trash 
collections per calendar year to keep the recognition signs up within their section of responsibility. 
Furthermore, staff is recommending a volunteer organization commitment for 2-years to minimize 
material and staffing costs to the City. 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 8B
1 of 18



2 

 

Finally, the staff has included a waiver of liability document and suggested safety tips for the volunteer 
organization.  The indemnification provides the necessary protections for the City should the volunteer 
organization not follow the best safety practices outlined in the Program application packet.  In addition, 
staff is recommending the minimum age to participate in the roadside abatement duties be limited to 18-
years of age or older. Restricting the age requirement to 18-years or older reduces the risk of injury to the 
volunteer members performing the service.  Furthermore, the City will be providing an Equipment Kit to 
the volunteer organization to utilize during the collection process, which includes a portable Roadwork-
Ahead sign, litter Pik-Stixs, safety vests, and trash bags.  
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Staff has estimated the majority of cost will be in the initial installation costs of the signs with minimal 
ongoing managerial oversight costs.  The initial Adopt-A-Road and recognition signs costs are estimated to 
be $400, to be funded from Beverage Recycling Grant 270 Fund. The Beverage Recycling Grant allows for 
roadside trash abatement as an approved use of the funding.  Additionally, there will be staff costs to 
install and administer the costs that are already built into the salary breakdown rates.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 46-2016 
2. Draft Adopt-a-Road Program Packet 

ITEM 8B
2 of 18



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 46-2016 
 

APPROVE THE ADOPT-A-ROAD PROGRAM AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ADMINISTER THE ADOPT-A-ROAD PROGRAM 

 

WHEREAS, at the October 19, 2016, City Council directed staff to draft an Adopt-a-
Road Program; and,  
 

WHEREAS, City staff researched existing trash abatement programs in the region 
and put together a draft proposal for Council’s consideration; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City staff created an Adopt-a-Road program with pertinent 

conditions to adequately administer the program. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax to 
approve the Adopt-a-Road Program and authorize the City Manager to administer the 
Adopt-a-Road Program.  
 
 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 9th day of  
November, 2016 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 8B
3 of 18



ITEM 8B
4 of 18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

ADOPT-A-ROAD PROGRAM 

  

ITEM 8B
5 of 18



                                 

Page 2 of 14 
 

 

Dear Prospective Volunteer: 

 
Thank you for your interest in the City of Colfax Adopt-a-Road Program. The Adopt-a-Road Program Guide 

is designed to make the program easy to understand and participate in. The list below describes the 

contents of this Guide and gives simple directions to follow.  To complete the application process, you 

will need to fill out and return pages 5, 6, & 7 of the Guide.  Our Coordinator will meet with you to fill out 

page 8, and after each clean-up, you will need to fill out and return page 10, (and page 6 if updated).  

Please read each section of this Guide and call the Program Coordinator at (530) 346-2313, if you have any 

further questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 

Wes Heathcock 

Community Services Director 
 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
 

GUIDE CONTENTS: 

Fact Sheet (Page 4) 

This sheet provides general information about the Adopt-a-Road Program. 

 
Adopt-a-Road Application (Page 5) 

The form needs to be completed by the organization or individual wanting to adopt a street. 

The group leader should mail the application to the Adopt-a-Road Program Coordinator. 

 
Acceptance and Conditions (Page 6) 

The form defines the responsibilities of the adopting organization as well as the City of Colfax Public Works 
Department.  The form needs to be filled out and signed by the group leader. This form shall be mailed 

along with the application.  The Program Coordinator must receive the signed form before the first cleanup 

can be scheduled. 

 
Hold Harmless (Pages 7) 

This form needs to be signed by each volunteer participating in the cleanup.  No participants under the age of 

18 are allowed to participate in the clean-up.  A copy must be sent to the Program Coordinator and the group 

leader should keep the original.  If any new volunteers participate during following cleanups who did not 

sign the original, have them sign and send an updated copy to the Program Coordinator. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 8B
6 of 18



                                 

Page 3 of 14 
 

GUIDE CONTENTS CONTINUED: 

Recognition Sign Request (Page 8) 

Group leaders must complete this form to request the installation of two (2) Adopt-a-Road recognition signs.  

As shown on this sheet, the City will provide two (2) plates showing the organization’s name, one (1) located 

at the beginning of each street section.  Organizations also have the option of placing their organization’s logo 

on the plates after the logo has been approved by the City. 

 

Equipment Kit Contents (Page 9) 

During your Adopt-a-Road cleanup, safety equipment is required.  This equipment can be reserved for your 

group by calling the Program Coordinator at least five (5) business days in advance of the cleanup date to 

arrange for a specific time to pick up the safety equipment.  The group leader should use this list as a guide 

when picking up the safety equipment.  All listed items should be included inside the Equipment Kit.  If any 

items are missing, please inform the Program Coordinator.   

 
Completion Form (Page 10) 

After each cleanup, group leaders must mail, fax, e-mail, or bring in the Completion Form to the Program 

Coordinator to report the figures as requested.  The group leader should make several Blank copies of this 

form to keep in their adopt-a-road file for later use. 

 
Safety Guidelines (Page 11) 

All volunteers participating in the cleanup will need to be familiar with the Safety Guidelines Sheet. This can 

be used as a reference in the field, in addition to the Safety Orientation Class. 

 
Items to Bag, Move, or Leave (Pages 12-13) 

Volunteers working along the roadside will find all types of garbage to bag.  However, some of the items 

found should be left where they are found.  The list on page 16 clarifies which items to bag, move, or leave. 

 
Garbage Bag Placement Plan (Page 14) 

The drawing on this page shows a sample setup for an Adopt-a-Road cleanup.  Safety is the number one 

priority during all cleanups.  Your Program Coordinator will make adjustments to the setup of safety 

equipment and garbage bag placement, if necessary. 

  

ITEM 8B
7 of 18



                                 

Page 4 of 14 
 

 
Adopt-A-Road 

Fact Sheet 
 

The Adopt-a-Road Program involves volunteer organizations picking up litter on the roadside of local City of 

Colfax streets.  Volunteer organizations will need to clean each street section 2-4 times per year with a 

minimum of a 2-year commitment.  Organizations are also required to fill out an Adopt-a-Road Application, 

and Release of Liability form, before cleanup can begin.  Organizations are required to contact the Program 

Coordinator two (2) business days prior to their scheduled cleanup and within one (1) business day following 

the cleanup.  In addition, once cleanup is completed the organization will need to fill out a Completion Form 

and return to the Program Coordinator e-mail. 

 
To show its appreciation, the City of Colfax will provide two (2) Adopt-a-Road signs, one at each end of the 

adopted section to show where the organization is working.  Signs will display the organization’s name and/or 

logo (to be provided by organization), but no addresses or phone numbers are allowed. 

 
The City will supply garbage bags and safety equipment to the volunteers and will provide garbage pickup 

service. 

 
The Adopt-A-Road Program has proven to be successful in improving appearance through litter pickup and is 

a great way for community based organizations/groups and businesses to show their involvement in the 

community. This Program will provide another opportunity for business and community based 

organizations/groups to work together in this effort.  Anyone interested in this program should contact: 
 
 

City of Colfax 

Department of Public Works 

P.O. Box 702 

Colfax, CA 95713 

  

ITEM 8B
8 of 18



                                 

Page 5 of 14 
 

 

Adopt-A-Road Application 
 

 

___________________________________  _________________________________ 

Name of Organization Date of Application 

 
 
 
Mailing Address 
 
 
 
City, State, Zip Code 
 
 
 
Name of Contact  Telephone 
 
 
 
Name of Alternate Contact  Alternate Telephone 
 
 
 
Mailing Address, City, State, Zip Code 

  

Street section you are interested in adopting.  List your selection in order of preference.  

 

1. _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The adopter agrees to follow safety tips and to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Colfax, its City 
Council, officers, directors, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, 
actions, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and damages of 
any nature whatsoever to any person or property, arising out of or resulting from the performance or 
nonperformance of this Agreement. 
 
 
Signed:   
   _______________________________________   _____________________ 
   Authorized Signature of Adopted Organization   Date 

 

  

ITEM 8B
9 of 18



                                 

Page 6 of 14 
 

 

Jan 
 

Feb 
 

Mar 
 

Apr 
 

May 
 

Jun 

Jul Aug Sep 
 

Oct 
 

Nov 
 

Dec 
   

 

Adopt-A-Road Application 

Acceptance and Conditions 
 
The adopting Organization agrees to participate in the program by picking up litter along the specified 

roadway within the time limits agreed upon below and signing the release of liability forms included. 

 

If, in the sole judgment of the City of Colfax, it is found that the adopting group is not meeting the terms 

and conditions of this agreement, upon thirty (30) days’ notice, the Public Works Department may 

terminate the adoption agreement. 

 

The City of Colfax will provide two (2) Adopt-a-Road signs, one at each end of the adopted section.  

Affixed to each sign will be a plate displaying the organization’s name in sufficient detail to identify the 

organization.  Organizations requesting a logo or name written in a special writing style (font) will be able 

to take the aluminum plate (provided by the City) to a private sign shop where upon their logo and/or name 

can be placed.  The City of Colfax retains the right to reject, without cause or explanation, any symbol or 

seal the City of Colfax determines unacceptable.  All logos must be approved by the City.  When the plate 

is completed and returned to the City, arrangements will be made to place the plate on the permanent 

Adopt-a-Road sign.  Organizations will be recognized via their name/logo on the permanent signs for 

participation in the Adopt-a-Road Program within thirty (30) days after the first cleanup. 

 
The City of Colfax recognizes ___________________________________________as the  
 

adopting organization and promoting a litter-free environment on the section of roadway  
 

described as _________________________ between ___________________________ and  
 

____________________________________ in the community for a period of two-years (2)  
 

beginning on _________________________ and ending on _________________________  
 

with clean-up to be a minimum of 2-times per year. 
 

______________________________ 

Community Services Director 
 

______________________________________ 

Print Name of Authorized Signature for Group 
 

______________________________ ____________ 

Authorized Signature for Group   Date 

 
 
  

Anticipated Clean-up Months 

(Coordinator to check all that apply) 

ITEM 8B
10 of 18



                                 

Page 7 of 14 
 

City of Colfax 

Adopt-A-Road Program 

Participant’s Registration, Waiver, Release, Assumption of Risk and Indemnity 

Agreement 
  

NOTE: Participant must complete this form in its entirety prior to participating or performing volunteer work or 

services 

 

Participant’s Name:  ____________________________________________________________ 

        (Last Name)   (First Name)  

Address:  _________________________________ City:  __________________ Zip:  ________ 

 

Phone:  (____) ________________ E-mail:  _________________________________________ 

 

Emergency Contact Name:  _____________________________Phone:  (____) _____________ 

 

In consideration of the permission given by the City of Colfax (“City”) to accept the above-named Participant, 

and to the greatest extent permitted by law, the undersigned hereby waives, releases and shall hold harmless, 

defend and indemnify the City and its subordinate and affiliated agencies, officers, officials, employees, 

sponsors and volunteers (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, 

expense and costs (including without limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in 

connection with the participation by the above-named Participant in any activity for which such Participant is 

being registered, except to the extent such injury, loss or damage is caused by the active negligence or willful 

misconduct of the Indemnitees.  Furthermore, I hereby agree that I, my successors and assigns knowingly and 

voluntarily assume the risk of engaging in this activity and will not make any claim against, sue, attach the 

property of, or prosecute any of the Indemnitees for any injury, liability, loss, damage, expense or costs arising 

out of or resulting from the participation by the above-listed Participant in any activity which such Participant is 

participating in.  I hereby grant permission to the City to take my or the above Participant’s photograph while 

participating in City activities or programs and to use such photograph(s) for publicity.  

 

NOTE: BY SIGNING THIS FORM, YOU ARE AGREEING TO RELIEVE THE CITY OF LIABILITY FOR 

PERSONAL INJURY, WRONGFUL DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE AND OTHER INJURY OR 

DAMAGE EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE ACTIVE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL 

MISCONDUCT OF THE CITY. 

 

Participant' Signature:  ________________________________   Date:  __________ 

 

 

  

ITEM 8B
11 of 18



                                 

Page 8 of 14 
 

Adopt-A-Road Program  

Recognition Sign Request 
 

The City of Colfax will provide two (2) Adopt-a-Road signs, one at each end of the adopted street section.   

Affixed to each sign will be a plate displaying the organization’s name in sufficient detail to identify the 

organization.  Organizations requesting a logo or name written in a special writing style (font) will be able to 

take the aluminum plate (provided by the City) to a private sign shop whereupon their logo and/or name can 

be placed.  The City of Colfax retains the right to reject, without cause or explanation, any symbol or seal the 

City of Colfax determines unacceptable.  All logos must be approved by the City.  When the plate is 

completed and returned to the City, arrangements will be made to place the plate on the permanent Adopt-a-

Road sign.  Organizations will be recognized via their name/logo on the permanent signs for participation in 

the Adopt-a-Road program within thirty (30) days after the first cleanup.  No address or telephone number 

will be included on the signs.  The City will maintain the signs. 

 

City provided plates will include a white reflective background with black non-reflective letters.  

 

In order to comply with state sign regulations and avoid safety hazards, volunteer provided plates cannot be 

more than 30% red, yellow, orange, or any combination thereof. 

 

Check One (1): 

 

 City will be supplying sign plate with the organization’s name as written below: 

 

  __________________________________________________________________ 

  Organization’s Name as it will Appear on Recognition Sign (Please Print Clearly) 

  

  _____________________________ 

  Signature of Organization Leader 

 

  

Organization will place its own logo/name on plate. (Blank plate will be provided by the  City, and logo 

is to be pre-approved by the City) 

 
  

 

 

ITEM 8B
12 of 18



                                 

Page 9 of 14 
 

Adopt-A-Road Program 

Equipment Kit Contents 
 

The equipment kit is designed to provide Adopt-a-Road volunteers with the necessary materials and tools to 

have a successful and safe cleanup event. 

 

The Program Coordinator will supply the Equipment Kit.  Safety information is provided in the Safety 

Guidelines sections on pages 12-13. 

 

The following items are included in the Equipment Kit: 

 

2 Portable "Road Work Ahead" signs 

2 Litter Pik-Stixs 

10 Safety Vests 

1 Box - Plastic Litter Bags (approx. 100 bags) 

 

The kit is designed to provide enough materials for ten volunteers.  If any items are missing, notify the Program 

Coordinator immediately.  Also, if you have any questions regarding the proper use of equipment, please ask. 

  

ITEM 8B
13 of 18



                                 

Page 10 of 14 
 

Adopt-A-Road Program 

Completion Form 
 

This form is used by the Adopt-A-Road Program Coordinator to keep track of program participants and the 

frequency of projects they are involved in.  Please remember to fill out and return a copy of this form after 

each cleanup. 

 

Clean-up completion date:  ________________ 

 

Group leader:  ________________________________ Phone #:  (____) ___________________ 

 

Name of organization:  __________________________________________________________ 

 

Street adopted:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

Number of volunteers that participated:  _______ 

 

Number of hours the clean-up lasted:  ________ 

 

Approximately how many bags of trash:  ________ 

 

We anticipate our next clean-up will be on (date)  ___________ 

 

Were there any unusual incidents or injuries during the clean-up?  _________ 

 

If so, please describe:  ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Note: 

Please return this form when completed to the Community Services Director at  

admin@colfax-ca.gov.  

 

  

ITEM 8B
14 of 18

mailto:admin@colfax-ca.gov


                                 

Page 11 of 14 
 

Adopt-A-Road Program 

Safety Guidelines 
 

You will be participating in a volunteer community cleanup near a City road, your safety and the safety 

of others is extremely important to us.  Please read and follow these safety guidelines: 

 Review these safety tips each time before beginning work. 

 Always park legally in a safe place when at the work area. 

 Review the area for hazards before beginning. 

 Do not touch possible hazardous materials.  Contact the City Program Coordinator for further 

instructions. 

 Wear City provided safety vests or bright colored clothing. 

 Dress appropriately for weather conditions. Long pants are highly recommended at all times. 

 Always face oncoming traffic while working, if possible. 

 Always be alert and have an escape route planned. 

 Designate a lookout person with large groups (5 or more people). 

 Wear protective gloves, sturdy boots or shoes. 

 Hats and sunscreen are recommended. 

 Do not walk on the roadway. 

 Never work in a median or center of the road. 

 Avoid over exertion. 

 Have a first aid kit available. 

 Have water or other refreshment available for all participants. 

 Never consume alcoholic beverages before or during the work period. 

 Have transportation to medical services available. 

 Do not enter or reach into drainage facilities. 

 Do not touch or come near dangerous wildlife. 

 Do not touch poisonous or thorny plants. 

 Never work along the road in the dark or low light conditions. 

 Do not work in the rain or fog. 

 Do not work when the road is wet or icy. 

 Do not work on high traffic volume days such as holidays or the day before holiday weekends. 

 Be sure of your footing on slopes, uneven ground, and unstable conditions such as rocks or loose soil. 

The most important tip is to use good judgment and stay alert.  Volunteers under the age 

of 18 may not participate in the Program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 8B
15 of 18



                                 

Page 12 of 14 
 

Adopt-A-Road Program 

Items to Bag, Move, or Leave 

 
BAG IT 

1.  These items may be placed in a bag. 

A.  Small items made of paper, cardboard, plastic, Styrofoam, wood, rubber, glass, or metal. 

 
MOVE IT 

1.  These items should be placed alongside your stacked bags at the edge of the shoulder. 

A.  Items with pointed edges that might tear a bag. 

B.  Large items that would prevent a bag from being properly tied closed. 

C.  Heavy items that could tear a bag provided that the item can be moved without causing 

physical injury. 

 

If in doubt, leave the item alone!  

 

LEAVE IT 

1.  These items should be left where found without taking further action. 
A.  Items that could cause physical injury if moved. 

B.  Any item in an unsafe location (within two (2) feet of a traffic lane or on unstable ground, 

etc.). 

 

2.  Report these items to the Program Coordinator that day, or on the next working day, during 

normal business hours. You may leave a voice message. 

A.  Items you are not permitted to bag or move that will not be easily visible to the garbage 

pickup crews collecting your filled bags. (If possible, place a filled bag near the item to 

mark its location.) 

B.  Securely closed items containing hazardous substances.* 

 

3.  Report these items to the City of Colfax as soon as possible at (530) 346-2313. If the call is after 

normal business hours, or on weekends, the call will be forwarded to our Public Works on-call 

phone. 

A.  Any item that you cannot identify and suspect may be hazardous.  

B.  Unclosed or leaking items containing hazardous substances.* 

C.  Items with hazardous material labels.* 

D.  Items that could pose an immediate danger.*  

E.  Items that could be crime-scene evidence.* 

 
Keep a safe distance away from the item and do not disturb it in any way! 

 
*See next page for examples. 

 

 

 

ITEM 8B
16 of 18



                                 

Page 13 of 14 
 

BAG IT, MOVE IT, OR LEAVE IT- CONTINUED 
 

 

Items of Concern: 

 
Hazardous Substances* 

 Any item that you cannot identify and suspect may be hazardous 

 Spills of liquid or powdery substances 

 Fuels, Motor oils, transmission fluids, petroleum products 

 Antifreeze Batteries Paints 

 Aerosol cans (that are not empty) 

 Human urine, bloody waste (gauze, etc.) 

 Syringes, labeled medicines, unlabeled medicines, and other drug paraphernalia 

 Items with hazardous material label 

 Animal Carcasses (Report to 875-5656 Nuisance Abatement) 

 
Extremely Hazardous Items /Possible Crime-Scene Evidence** 

 Bloody items that may be crime-scene evidence 

 Explosives, possible bombs (capped pipes, wrapped packages, etc.) Weapons (guns, knives, etc.), unspent 

ammunition 

 
*Report these items to the City of Colfax (530) 346-2313 on that day. 

 
**If you do  not have access to a phone, then  someone  other  than  your group's safety  leader  must  

leave the  site  to  make  the  call  to the  City of Colfax   (530) 346-2313.  Then, unless advised to leave the 

area, the organization's leader must stay at the site until someone of authority arrives. Keep a safe 

distance away from the item and do not disturb it in any way! 
 
 
 
 
 

In a life threatening emergency always call 911! 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 8B
17 of 18



                                 

Page 14 of 14 
 

Adopt-A-Road Program 

Garbage Bag Placement Plan 
 

 

                                         
 

Edge of Pavement     _________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   
 

  Center Line          ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

  

  

  Edge of Pavement     ____________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Fence Line or 

Private 

Property 

ITEM 8B
18 of 18



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 9, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 
PREPARED By: Staff 

SUBJECT: Health Insurance 
 

FUNDED  and 
UNFUNDED 

AMOUNT: Represented Employees Benefits as budgeted,                                                                     

Non Represented Employees $20,000 (FY2016-2017) 
FROM FUNDS: Multiple, 
Wastewater and General Funds 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 47-2016: 
1. Electing to be subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act at Unequal Amounts 

for Employees and Annuitants (the standard CalPERS contract). 
2. Authorize the City Manager to contract with Burnham Benefits for Vision, Dental and Life Insurances 

for Represented and Non Represented Employees 
3. Approve offering a health benefits package to Non Represented Employees beginning January 1, 

2017.  
 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
 
Represented Employees 
The current Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Stationary Engineers Local 39 which Council 
approved on March 23, 2016 includes provisions to eliminate the City payment to the Union Health and 
Welfare program, provide employee choice and reduce City costs while continuing to attract and retain 
quality represented employees.  The MOU phases-in employee contributions to Health Benefit costs while 
the City contribution cap decreases.  Represented Employees will now have an option to receive in-lieu 
payments if they have alternate coverage.  
 
To implement the contract which Council approved, staff contacted several insurance brokers and CalPERS 
comparing costs and services for employees and the City.  Staff has concluded CalPERS best fits the needs 
of the City with its large membership base.  Insurance brokers cannot offer the same types of benefits to 
small employers which a statewide program can offer.  CalPERS offers health insurance only.   
 
For Dental, Vision and Life, staff recommends Burnham Benefits.  The rates are fair and service from this 
brokerage has been excellent. (Burnham Quote is attached) 
 
Non-Represented Employees 
The intent of the City during negotiations with the Union MOU was to control City costs so the same 
benefits package could be offered to all employees.  Implementing a benefits package for Non Represented 
employees is important to retain and recruit quality employees.  The contract with CalPERS includes all 
employees to provide for this important long term goal.   

ITEM 8C
1 of 7



2 

 

 
Currently, the City does not offer insurance to the three full-time Non Represented Employees, but 
employees receive a stipend they may use to obtain their own insurance.   
 
Staff recommends covering Non Represented employees today at the rate Represented employees will be 
reduced to after the 5 year phase-in which is described in the MOU: 
 

“Effective January 1, 2020, the City will contribute 100% of the first $800 and 80% of the cost over $800 for 
medical/vision/dental/life insurance benefit cost, to a maximum of city contribution of $1,725, with the 
represented employee paying 20% of the cost over $800, and any amount over City maximum contribution.” 
 

In 2020 all employees will be covered at the same rates. 
 
Staff estimates providing benefits to three Non Represented Employees from January 1, 2017 through the 
end of the Fiscal Year (June 30, 2017) may increase City costs by approximately $20,000 and $40,000 per 
Fiscal Year thereafter.  These expenses can be included in the February mid-year budget review.  Not 
providing these benefits will create an undue burden on employees and adversely affect retention and 
recruiting. 

 

 
Attachments:   

1.  Resolution 47-2016 (CalPERS Contract)  
2.  Burnham Dental/Vision/Life Quote 

 

 

ITEM 8C
2 of 7



 

NEW – ALL BY GROUP, UNEQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 5/2015) 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 47-2016 
ELECTING TO BE SUBJECT TO THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT 

AT UNEQUAL AMOUNTS FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS 
 
 
WHEREAS, (1) A contracting agency meeting the eligibility requirements set forth in Government Code  

Section 22920, may obtain health benefit plan(s), as defined under Government Code 
Section 22777, by submitting a resolution to the Board of Administration of the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (the “Board”), and upon approval of 
such resolution by the Board, become subject to the Public Employees' Medical and 
Hospital Care Act (the “Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, (2) City of Colfax is a contracting agency eligible to be subject to the Act under Government  
Code Section 22920; and 

 
WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act  

shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, (4) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an  

equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount 
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and  

 
WHEREAS, (5) Government Code Section 22892(c) provides that, notwithstanding Section 22892(b), a  

contracting agency may establish a lesser monthly employer contribution for annuitants 
than for employees, provided that the monthly employer contribution for annuitants is 
annually increased to equal an amount not less than the number of years the 
contracting agency has been subject to this subdivision multiplied by 5 percent of the 
current monthly employer contribution for employees, until such time as the amounts 
are equal; and 
 

WHEREAS, (6) City of Colfax desires to obtain for its employees and annuitants the benefit of the Act  
and to accept the liabilities and obligations of an employer under the Act; now, 
therefore, be it 
 

RESOLVED, (a) City of Colfax elects to be subject to the provisions of the Act; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, (b) That the employer contribution for each employee shall be the amount necessary to pay  
the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members, in a 
health benefits plan up to a maximum of: 
 

Medical Group Monthly Employer Contribution 

001 Represented PEMHCA Minimum 

002 Non-Represented PEMHCA Minimum 

 
Plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further 
 
 
 

RESOLVED, (c) That the employer contribution for each annuitant shall be the amount necessary to pay  

ITEM 8C
3 of 7



 

NEW – ALL BY GROUP, UNEQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 5/2015) 
 

 

the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family members, in a 
health benefits plan up to a maximum of: 
 

Medical Group Monthly Employer Contribution 

001 Represented $1.00 

002 Non-Represented $1.00 

 
Plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, (d) That the employer contribution for each annuitant shall be increased annually by five  

percent of the monthly contribution for employees, multiplied by the number of years 
the contracting agency has been subject to the Act, until such time as the contributions 
are equal;  

 
And that the contributions for employees and annuitants shall be in addition to those 
amounts contributed by the Public Agency for administrative fees and to the 
Contingency Reserve Fund; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, (e) City of Colfax has fully complied with any and all applicable provisions of Government  

Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, (f) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of City of Colfax shall be subject  
to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of the state or political 
subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a governmental plan within the 
meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final 
Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that City of Colfax would not 
qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State 
under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to 
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer. 
 

RESOLVED, (g) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,  
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and 
to perform on behalf of City of Colfax all functions required of it under the Act; and be it 
further 
 

RESOLVED, (h) That coverage under the Act be effective on January 1, 2017. 
 
 
Adopted at a regular board meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax at 33 South 
Main Street, Colfax, California 95713, this 9th day of November, 2016. 

 
 
    Signed:  _________________________________ 
     Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
    Attest:   _________________________________ 
     Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk

ITEM 8C
4 of 7



QICHDICE BUILDER

Benefits Proposal

For

CITY OF COLFAX

Presented By

BURNHAM BNFTS INS SVC
SARA CORP

(916) 642-1004
License # 0D29126

These rates are quoted for the proposed effective date of January 1, 2017. If another effective date is selected or you are
requesting an effective date more than 30 days in advance please confirm the rates quoted.

We have endeavored to provide you with an accurate proposal based on the information given to us. Although we believe the
rate and benefit information to be correct, please keep in mind that final rates and benefits are based upon actual enrollment
and underwriting. Approval must be communicated by Choice Builder. We assume no liability for rate differences and ask that
you advise your client not to cancel their prior coverage until final rating information and underwriting approval has been
received from Choice Builder. This proposal contains a summary of plan benefits. For complete benefit details refer to the
group service agreement or benefit guide.

All rights are reserved. No portion of this material may be reproduced in any form or by any electronic or mechanical systems
without permission in writing from the publisher.

Quote 000170993.001 www.choicebuilder.com October 27, 2016

ITEM 8C
5 of 7



‘

STEP I : Dental

•Pick ONE PPO Carrier to go alongside Delta Dental® DHMO Plans
Employer Sponsored — Requires minimum 2 enrolled and 70% ParUdpation

. Voluntary — Requires minimum 10 Eflgible and minimum 5 enrolled

STEP 2: Vision

. Pick ONE Vision Carrier
Employer Sponsored — Requires minimum 2 enrolled and 70% Participation

•Voluntary — No minimum participation requirement

STEP 3: Chiropractic/Acupuncture

. Employer Sponsored — 100°h participation, 100% paid by employer
•Voluntary — No minimum participation requirement

STEP 4: Life/AD & D

. 100°h participation, 100% paid by employer

STEP 5: Enrollment

•Ask your broker for custom benefit and rate sheets for your employees

STEP 6: Group Submission

. Employer Application
. Employee Enrollment Forms and/or Waivers
•Client Company Check/ist month premium

, LANDMARK
H EALTH PLAN

Ameritas
Rh 0 VS Pnca!trlif L*

,HRAtvve Link

C GHDICE BUILDER

Program Guidelines

866.412.9254
www.choicebuilder.com

6 sm*ewr

ITEM 8C
6 of 7



Group Name: CITY OF COLFAX
Quote #: 000170993
Effective Date: January 1, 2017
Number of Employees: 9L Employee Rates

Employer Sponsored Plans

Dependents: 25

Voluntary Plans
Employee Employee Employee Employee Employee Employee Employee Employee

Dental Plan Name Only & Spouse & Child(ren) & Family Only & Spouse & Child(ren) & Family
PPO - Silver Plan NotAvailable $ 4363 $ 89.00 $ 91.29 $ 138.76
PP0 - Silver .

. Plan NotAvailable Plan Not Availablewith Ortho
PPO - Gold $ 63.64 $ 129.83 $ 139.39 $ 211.87 Plan Not Available

Anthem Blue Cross PPO - Gold .. Plan NotAvailable Plan Not Availablewith Ortho
.PPO - Platinum $ 68.34 $ 139.42 $ 149.44 $ 227.15 Plan Not Available
PPo - Platinum .

. Plan NotAvailable Plan Not Available
[ with Ortho

DeltaCare®USA’i HMO-Silver $ 21.55 $ 37.07 $ 37.33 $ 53.80 $ 24.02 $ 41.31 $ 41.60 $ 59.93
(includesOrtho)

HMO-Go $ 24.02 $ 41.31 $ 41.60 $ 59.93 $ 26.95 $ 46.36 $ 46.70 $ 67.32
PPO-Silver $ 44.46 $ 88.92 $ 97.71 $ 142.17 $ 51.13 $ 102.25 $ 112.36 $ 163.49
PPO-Sihier

44.46 $ 88.92 $ 114.53 $ 158.99 $ 51.13 $ 102.25 $ 131.70 $ 182.83

PPO-Gold $ 49.68 $ 99.36 $ 109.55 $ 159.24 . $ 57.13 $ 114.27 $ 125.99 $ 183.12
Ameritas Group PPO-Gcd 49.68 $ 99.36 126.37 $ 176.06 , $ 57.13 $ 114.27 $ 145.33 $ 202.46

PPO - Platinum $ 57.17 $ 114.34 $ 128.51 $ 185.17 $ 65.75 $ 131.50 $ 147.79 $ 212.95
PPD-Platinum 57.17 $ 114.34 $ 144.56 $ 201.22 $ 65.75 $ 131.50 $ 166.25 $ 231.41

PPo - Silver Plan NotAvailable $ 52.46 $ 103.98 $ 114.53 $ 1697
PPO-Sik,er Plan NotAvailable $ 52.46 $ 103.98 $ 139.06 $ 194.48

PPO - Gold $ 46.20 $ 104.00 $ 106.79 $ 155.38 • Plan Not Available
Delta Dental FF5 PPO-Gcd 46.20 104.00 118.14 $ 175.40 Plan NotAvailable

PPo
- Platinum $ 59.80 $ 133.98 $ 134.06 $ 196.10 Plan NotAvailable

PPO-Platinum
59.80 $ 133.98 $ 148.31 $ 221.36 Plan NotAvailable

. .
Employee Employee & Employee & Employee Employee & Employee &

Vision Only 1 Dependent 2+ Dependents Only I Dependent 2+ Dependents
Silver $ 5.22 $ 9.94 $ 13.76 $ 8.66 $ 16.43 $ 22.93

EyeMed Gold $ 6.37 $ 12.10 $ 16.94 $ 9.68 $ 18.47 $ 25.61
Platinum $ 9.68 $ 18.34 $ 25.61 $ 14.39 $27.39 $ 38.09
Silver $ 6.48 $ 12.71 $ 20.47 1 1 Plan Not Available

VSP Gold $ 7.66 $ 15.03 $ 24.19 $ 8.80 $ 17.31 $ 27.89
Platinum $ 9.32 $ 18.36 $ 29.54 $ 10.73 $ 21.16 $ 34.06

—-------

. .
Employee Employee and Employee Employee and

Chiropractic Only Dependents Only Dependents

Landmark Chiropractic $ 1.74 $ 1.74 . $ 1.74 $ 1.74

Healthplan Chiropractic!
Acupuncture

Life
,,

Assurity Life

0 Delta HMO rates are shown based on employer zip code. Actual rates are based on employee zip code. Please refer to each individual employee’s worksheets
for actual rate.

$ 2.14

Life

$ 2.14

Average Cost
Per $1000
$ 0.37

$ 2.14

Average Cost
Per Employee
$ 3.70

$ 2.14

Quote 0001 70993.001 www.choicebuilder.com October27, 2016

ITEM 8C
7 of 7


	00A 161109 Agenda
	01A Mink Creek
	01 Mink Creek Sewer Dedication Staff Report_AaC
	02 Supporting Documentation Mink Creek Subdivision Denial of Acceptance of Utilities with Supporting Documentation
	Mink Creek Subdivision Denial of Acceptance of Utilities with Supporting Documentation
	Complete
	First Half
	Second Half
	Escrow.pdf
	DOC_20130624131549
	DOC_20130624131605



	03 Geocon Report with photos
	Mink Creek Sinkhole Photos_6-14-07.pdf
	DSC04220.pdf
	DSC04219.pdf
	DSC04222.pdf
	DSC04221.pdf
	DSC04218.pdf
	DSC04217.pdf
	DSC04216.pdf
	DSC04215.pdf
	DSC04214.pdf
	DSC04193.pdf
	DSC04213.pdf
	DSC04189.pdf
	DSC04188.pdf
	DSC04191.pdf
	DSC04187.pdf
	DSC04229.pdf
	DSC04228.pdf
	DSC04225.pdf
	DSC04227.pdf
	DSC04224.pdf
	DSC04186.pdf
	DSC04223.pdf



	04A 161026 Minutes
	04B Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Report Sep 2016
	161109 Data Investment Report

	04C Sales Tax Report
	2016-11-09 Sales Tax Analysis
	161109 Sales tax data

	04D 161109 Winterfest Seed Money
	07A Mitigation Impact Fee
	Staff Report - 2016  Mitigation Impact Fee
	Resolution 45-2016 Mitigation Fees
	Annual AB1600 Report 2016
	Colfax Mitigation Fee Study - Updated July 1, 2016

	08A 161102_WWTP EQ Dam Project Staff Report
	08B Adopt a Road
	Adopt-a-Road Staff Report 11.09.2016
	Resolution 46-2016 Adopt-a-Road Program
	WES COLFAX
	Adopt A Road Program 11.9.2016 (2)

	08C CalPERS Health
	161109 SR Health Insurance
	Resolution 47-2016 CalPERS Health
	161109 Burnham Quote




